
i-, .... ,.~ 
1-- 1; ,-- i ) 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURTI!·!ii,:;/:y','·;C.i.:\~:··S};iii· 
FOR TIlE DISTRICT OF NEW MEXICO 05 OCT 12.PH I: II 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
COMMISSION, 

Plainti!{ 

v. 

UNIVERSITY OF PHOENIX, INc.. 

Defendant.' 

) 

) 
) 

) 

) 

) 
) 

) 

) 
) 

-----------------------------) 

-:j 

CV -05~ I 048 .J8/WPL 

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT 

JURY TRIAL DEMAND 

Comes no\\', Plaintiff, the Equal Employment Opportunity COll1mi~sion ami pursuant to Rule 

15(a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and hereby amends its Complaint filed on September 

30,2005 to correct errors in Paragraph 8. 

NATUR~~ OF THE ACTION 

This is an action under Title VII of the Ci\'il Rights Act of I <)64 and Title I of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1991 to correct unlawful CmpIO)111cnt practices on the bases of sex and retaliation, and 

to provide appropriate relief to Loretta Grado and Lorena Pinon whowere adversely affected by such 

practices during their employment with Dcfcndant Uliiversity of Phoenix, Inc. The Commissioil 

alleges that Loretta Grado and Lorena Pinon were slibjected to harassment beeause of their sex, 

including sexlIally offensive comments and conduct of high-ranking management officials, \\·hich 

created a hostile work environment for them becaLlse of ,their' sex, female. In addition, the 

Commission alleges that Defendant failcd to promote Ms. Grado in retaliation for her opposition 

to perceived unlawful employment practices. Finally, the Conllllis;ion alleges that Ms. Pinollwas 



,. 

subjected to retaliation with respect to hertcrms, coilditions and privileges ofemploy111ent because 

she opposed perceived unlawful employment practices .. 

. IURISDICTION ANDVI~NUE 

I. .hirisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to 28 ().S.c. §§ 451, 1331, 1337. 1343 

and 1345. This action is authorized and institutcd pursuant to Section 706(f)( I) and (3) of Title VII 

ofthc Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amcnded 42 U.S.c. S 2000c-5 (1)(1) and(3) ("Title VII") and 

Section 102 of the Civil Rights Act of1991, 42li.s.C. § 1981a. 

2. The cmploymcnt practices alleged' to be unlawful were committed within the 

jurisdiction ofthc United.Statcs District Court for the District of' New Mexico. 

I'ARTIli:S 

3. Plaintiff, the Equal Employment Opportunity ~ommission (the "Commission"), is 

the agency of the United' States of America charged with tllc administration, interpretation and 

enforcement of Title VII, and is expressly authorized to bring this action by Section 706(1)( I ) and 

(3) ofTitle VII, 42 U.S.c. § 2000e-5(t)(l) and (3). 

4. At all relevant times, Defendant University of Phoenix, Inc., (the "Employer") has 

continuously been an Arizona corporation doing business in the State of New Mexico and the City 

of Santa T <!resa, and has continuously had at least i 5 employees .. 

5. At all relevant times, Defendant Employer has continuously bcen and is now ail 

employer engaged in an industry al1"ccting commerce within the meaning ofScction 701(b), (g) and 

(h) ofTitlc VII. 42 U.S.c. § 2000c-(b), (g) and (h). 
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STATEMENT OF CLAIMS 

6. More than thirty days prior to the institution 0 fthislawsuit, Loretta Grado and Lorena 

Pinon liled charges with the Commission alleging violations of Title VII by the University of 

Phoenix. All conditions precedent to the institution of this lawsuit have heen fulfilled. 

7. Since at least October 2002, Defendant Employer has engaged in unlawful 

employment practices at its Santa Teresa, New Mexico facility in violation of Section 703(a) ofTitlc 

VII, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e-2(a) because of sex. These practices include the harassment of Loretta 

Grado and Lorena Pinon which created a hostilc work environment hecause ofthcir sex, female. 

8. Since at least October 2003, Defcndant Employer has engaged inunlawfulretaliatory 

cmpIO)~l1ent practices at its Santa Teresa, New Mexico facility in violation of Section 704(a) of Title 

VII, 42 U.S.c. ** 2000e-3(a). These retaliatory practices include: 

a) the failure to promote Loretta Grado to u Fillancial Aid Counselor position alter 

she expressed opposition to and made complaints about unlawful.cmplo)~l1ent 

practices; and 
'.' 

b) the retaliatory terms, conditions and privilcgcsof employment that Loreliil Pint)!] . . . 

was subjected to, including but not limited to, negative job evaluation, changes iiI job 

duties, changes in work space, and denial of training all ofwhicli ocnlrred because 

Nls. Pinon expressed opposition to and made complaints about unlawful cmpl~)~l1ent . 

practices. 

9. The effect of the practices complained orin paragraph 7 ahove has been io dcprive 

Loretta Grado and Lorena Pinon of equal employment opportunities and otherwise adversely affect 
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their status as employees hecause of their sex, fcmale. 

10. Thc dfect of the practices complained of in paragraph 8 above has heen to deprive 

Loretta Grado and Lorena Pinon of cqual employmcrit opportuliities and otherwise adverscIy ~ifrect 

their status as employees because of their opposition to unlawful employment practices. 

II. The unlawful employment practices complainedofin paragraphs 7 and S ahove were 

intentional. 

12. The unlawful employment practices complained'of in paragraphs 7 and 8 ahove were 

done with malice and/or with reckless indiJTerence tothe federally protected rights of Loretta Grado 

and Lorena Pinon. 

PRA YER FOR RELIEF 

Wherefore, the Commission rcspectfully reljuests that this Court: 

A. Grant a pennanent injunction enjoining Defendarit Employer, its officers, successors, 

assigns and all persons in active concert or participation with it, from engaging in harassment of 

employees because of scx and any other employment practice which discriminates oil the basis of 

sex. 

B. Grani a pennanent injunction cnjoiningDefendant Employer. its officers, successors, 

assigns and all persons in active concert or participation with it, lrom cngaging in any employment 

practice which discriminates or retaliates against any individual hecause of the individual~s 

opposition to perceivcd unlawful employmcnt practices and/or because the individual filed a charge, 

testified, assisted, or participated in an invcstigation or proceeding undcr Title VII. 

C. Order Defendant Employer to institute and carryout policies, practices and progran)s 
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which provide equal emplo)1nent opportunities for women and for those who oppose perceivcd 
. . . 

unlawful emplo)1nent practices and/or file charges, testifY. assist or participate in an investigation 

or proceeding under Title VIf. and which eradicate the cffects of its past and present unlawful 

cmplo)1nent practic.es. 

D. Order Defendant Employer to make whole Loretta Grado by providing appropriatc 

back pay with prejudgmcnt intercst associated with her lost promotion opportunity. in amoilllts to 

be detellnined at trial, and other affirmative relief necessary to eradicate the .effects of its' unlawful 

employmcnt practice.s. 

E. Order Defendant Employer to make whole Loretta Grado and Lorena Pinon by 

providing c-ompensation for past and future pecuniary losse's res~dting from the unlawful emplo)1ncnt 

practices described in paragraphs 7 and 8 above, including, med.ical expenses, and other pecuniary 

losses, in amounts to be detennined at trial. 

F. Order Defendant Employer to make whole Loretta Grado and Lorena Pinon by. 

providing compensation for past and future nonpecuniary losses resulting from thc unlawful 

practices complained of in paragraphs 7 and S above, including but not limited to. emotional pain, 

suffering. inconvenience, mental anguish, humiliation, loss of cnjo)1nent of life, and other 

nonpccuniary losses. in amounts to be determined at trial. 

G. Order DeICndant Employerto pay Loretta Grado a'nd Lorena Pinon punitive damages 

for its malicious and/or reckless COIiduct deseribcd in paragraphs 7 and 8 above. in amounts to be 

determined at trial. 

1-1. Grant such further relief as the Court decllls n,ecessary and proper in the public 

interest. 
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JURY TRIAL DEj\'lANllF:O . 

DATED this J l'h dav of October, ~005. . . 
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'JA~jr;~~. LEE' 
D~I)uiy{;el1el'ilJ Counsel 
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GWEND()L YN"{()IJNG REAMS 
.Associate G~neral Counsel 
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VERONICA A. MOI.INA 
Trial Attorney 
EQUAL EMPLOYME:--JT OPPORTUNITY 

COMMISSION 
Albuquerque Area Offiee 
505 Marquette NW, Suite <)00 

" Albuquei-quc, New Mexico 87102 
(505) 248~5230 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
. ", ., . 

",. 
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